N

[

Wl“

MINUTES OF THE

SELMA CITY COUNCIL
MAY 5, 2009
12:00 NOON
Call to Order
Invocation: Reverend Darryl Moore, Pastor
Second Missionary Baptist Church
Pledge of Allegiance

The Selma City Council met in a regular session in the Council Chambers of City Hall on Tuesday,
May 5, 2009 at 12 o’clock noon.

ROLL CALL

The following members were present during roll call: Council President Dr. Geraldine Allen and Council
members Cecil Williamson, Dr. Monica Newton, Angela Benjamin, Benny L. Tucker, Bennie R. Crenshaw,
and Corey Bowie. Others present were Mayor George Evans, City Clerk Ivy S. Harrison, City Attorney
Jimmy Nunn, City Treasurer Cynthia Mitchell and the Mayor's Executive Assistant Brenda Smothers.
Councilwoman Susan Keith was absent during roll call, but arrived at 12:07 p.m. Councilman Samuel
Randolph was absent during roll call, but arrived at 1:02 p.m.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

President Allen asked for the approval of the agenda items. A motion was made by Councilman Bowie, and
seconded by Councilman Tucker, to approve the agenda items as written. The motion carried with a
unanimous (show of hands) vote of the Council members present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

After approval of the agenda, President Allen asked for the approval of the minutes of April 14, 2009

regular meeting minutes. A motion was made by Councilman Tucker, and seconded by Councilwoman
Newton, to approve the minutes of April 14, 2009. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed with a
unanimous vote of the Council members present.

President Allen stated at this particular time, we would be in the “hands” of our City Attorney to Canvass
Ballots of our Special Election, and to Certify the Results of that Special Election, which was held on Tuesday,
April 28, 2009.

L CANVASS BALLOTS

Canvassing of the Provisional Ballots was facilitated by City Attorney Jimmy Nunn and City Clerk
Ivy S. Harrison. During canvassing, Mrs. Harrison stated that a total of 3 Provisional Ballots were submitted
to the Board of Registrar’s Office from Tuesday, Special Election on April 28t, Mrs. Harrison further stated 2
of those ballots were Certified by the Board of Registrar’s Office, and will be counted today.

IL CERTIFICATION OF ELECTION - RESOLUTION #R199-08/09

Attorney Nunn stated Resolution #R199-08/09 is being revised to reflect the totals of the Provisional
Ballots, and if Council preferred, he could bring it back before them for a vote later in the Council meeting, or
they could take action on the Resolution now. Following Attorney Nunn’s statement, Councilwoman
Newton made a motion, which was seconded by Councilwoman Crenshaw, to approve said Resolution
#R199-08/09 to Certify the results of the April 28% Special Election, School Board Referendum. A roll call
vote was taken and the motion passed with a unanimous vote of the Council members present.

CITIZENS’ REQUESTS
Mr. Jimmy Coleman, Mr. Steve South, Mr. Ed Fleming, Mr. Lawrence Towns
Re: Sunday Liquor Sales

Ms. Velma Brewer
Re: Public Conduct of Elected Officials

Mr. Edward Shaw
Re: Citizen Concerns Related to Overlook Hills



PAGE 2 OF 9
SELMA CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MAY 5, 2009
12:00 NOON
MAYOR’S REPORT
A. Proclamation - “National Hospital Week”. Mayor Evans stated to Council that he has

prepared a Proclamation for the Council to approve and adopt in honor of American Hospital Association
Week, to proclaim “American Hospital Week” in Selma, May 10 -~ 16, 2009, and “urges all residents to express
their appreciation for the people, facilities, and technologies that may be trustworthy, reliable health care
possible in our community”. Mayor Evans further stated Mr. Keel, CEO of Vaughan Medical Center is here,
along with Ms. Mary South, Director of Community Relations, and asked that they come up during the
presentation of the Proclamation. Mr. Keel stated to the Council, on behalf of the Hospital, he appreciates all
of the support that the Hospital receives, and thanked Mayor Evans and the Council, along with the
Community, for the support that they receive.

B. Proclamation - “National Moment of Remembrance”. Mayor Evans stated to Council that
some of them may not know Charles “Chuck” Strong but that he is a native of Selma, and lives in California
now. Mayor Evans further stated Charles “Chuck” Strong has made several good albums, and that his most
successful Blues album is in the Top #2 “spot” as “we speak”. Mayor Evans stated he is going to be in Selma
on Friday, May 8, 2009, to do a performance here at our local Elks Club. Mayor Evans stated he wants to
proclaim Friday, May 8, 2009, “Charles ‘Chuck’ Strong Day” in Selma, because “he is a native son, who has
enriched the world of music with his unique blend on story telling and rhythm”. Mayor Evans further stated
“his contributions to the entertainment world and his hard work in that field reflect positively on the talent,
fortitude and abilities of all ‘Selmians’”.

C. Phoenix Park Proposal. Mayor Evans stated to Council that they should have before them a
copy of the Phoenix Park Proposal. Mayor Evans further stated the location of that Park is on the vacant land,
across the street from, and facing the St. James Hotel. Mayor Evans further stated if Council recalls, this is the
area where the building collapsed, that is now complete in terms of the ground being completely leveled off,
and looking beautiful. Mayor Evans stated a Committee came to him on this last week, to talk about the
possibility of placing the Phoenix Group in that area, which would only be temporary until the City decides
upon a business to operate the space, but at this point the City has no one who has indicated that they want to
put a business there. Mayor Evans stated the Phoenix Group would like to come and place the design in
there, with no cost to the City. Mayor Evans further stated Ms. Nancy Smith of the Historic and Preservation
Society, along with Mr. George Needham, of the Historic and Preservation Society, and Mr. Steve Grossman
of the Dallas County Arts Alliance are present, and asked that they come forward and address the Council
with a presentation. Mayor Evans further stated the Committee is asking for permission to move forward,
with the understanding of coming back to update the Council as to how the project is going to be done, and
the phases it will be done in. Mayor Evans stated that Attorney Nunn would draft a contract agreement as it
relates to this project. President Allen asked if something in writing could be given to the Council, prior to
them taking a vote at all? Mayor Evans answered, and stated at next Tuesday’s meeting, he will have a draft
copy of the contract agreement to present to the Council, for their consideration. Mr. Grossman stated this
will be in the same way that the “Butterfly” Project was; that it will be a combined effort of the Arts
Community and this wonderful community that he is proud to be affiliated with, and also working with the
Historic Society which is going to be the “driving force” on this, and a commitment from at least one of the
Garden Clubs.

D. Alabama Firefighters and EMS Personnel Honors. Mayor Evans stated to Council that the
Alabama Firefighters and EMS Personnel would like to declare a day for honoring our Firefighters and EMS,
on Friday, June 19, 2009 at 7:00 p.m., at the Birmingham-Jefferson Convention Complex. Mayor Evans further
stated that they are asking that the City Sponsors or Co-Sponsors this event, and he wanted to bring it before
the Council to ask their consideration as a City to be a part of this Program which is taking place in June. A
motion was made by Councilman Williamson, and seconded by Councilwoman Newton, to continue this
item until the next Council meeting on next week, which is Tuesday, May 12t

E. Stewart King-McKenzie Building - Update. Mayor Evans stated to Council that they
should have within their packets cost estimates as it relates to the Stewart King-McKenzie Building. Mayor
Evans further stated the Building has been inspected by Ms. Debra Love, and there are no known
contaminants in the Building that she has found. Mayor Evans stated to Council that his recommendation is
that they accept the Stewart King-McKenzie Building as a Gift, and asked Council favorable consideration of
the same. A motion was made by Councilman Bowie, and seconded by Councilman Tucker, to accept the
Stewart King-McKenzie Building as a Gift from the Owner. A roll call vote was taken and the motion
passed with a majority vote of the Council members present. There were seven affirmative votes of the
Council present, and one nay vote. Councilwoman Crenshaw cast a nay vote. During roll call,
Councilwoman Crenshaw stated, for the record, that her vote is no based upon the fact that she thinks the
person who owns the property should demolish the property.

F. Landfill Project - Update. Mayor Evans stated we have got to move forward with these
projects because we are under a deadline of November 274, for having the new Landfill opened. Mayor Evans
further stated to Council that they should have within their packets a copy of all of the items that must be
done, and that he has met with our Staff to look at the possibilities of who could do what, in order to get this




[N

PAGE 3 OF 9

SELMA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MAY 5, 2009

12:00 NOON

MAYOR’S REPORT

project underway. Mayor Evans stated he is recommending that Ms. Debra Love be the individual to oversee
this Landfill project for us, because he has no expertise in drawing up contract agreements in terms of this
Landfill project. Mayor Evans further stated we do not have anybody on Staff who can actually oversee this
Project, and being responsible for making sure that these dimensions, guidelines and policies are met. Mayor
Evans stated to Council that they should also have within their packets a contract for seven (7) months from
Ms. Love for $14,000.00, to oversee this Project beginning May 1¢, for the purpose of getting our new Landfill
opened because if we do not open that Landfill by the deadline date, we could be fined by ADEM as to our
failure to meet that criteria. During discussion, Councilman Williamson stated to President Allen, that he
would like to read two (2) things into the record, and stated “on September 24, 2007, the Council approved a
Contract for $72,000.00, paying Ms. Debra Love $6,000.00 per month for 12 months, for 6 or 7 days work each
month to do this Landfill Project’. Councilman Williamson further stated the other is, “from our Minutes of
July 23, 2007, that Ms. Love gave some kind of report to the Council about the Landfill, and then she
recommended that CDG Engineers and Holland Technical Services be awarded the proposal in the amount of
$61,000.00, I guess for the Engineering Services on this project; I just think that we are paying her for stuff that
should have already been done or work that she should have done before for all this money.” President
Allen requested a copy of the Contract for $72,000.00, for the Council as it relates to this matter. During
further discussion, Mayor Evans asked Ms. Love to come forward to address the Council. A motion was
made by Councilman Bowie, and seconded by Councilman Tucker, to table this matter until the next Council
meeting, and to request that Mr. Tommy Smith, Public Works Director, be present for that Council meeting.
A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed with a majority vote of the Council. There were five
affirmative votes of the Council and four nay votes. President Allen, Councilwoman Newton,
Councilman Randolph and Councilwoman Crenshaw each cast a nay vote.

G. Air Conditioning and Heating System - Expenses. Mayor Evans stated to Council that
President Allen and he had met with the Air Conditioning and Heating System Representative, because they
had some concerns as it relates to the heating and cooling of the Public Buildings. Mayor Evans further stated
that Council should have a copy of the estimated expenses related to the Convention Center, as well as, City
Hall, and asked Council consideration in the amount of $13,297.04, to be paid out of the Public Buildings
Account, #1.6022 141-0. A motion was made by Councilman Williamson, and seconded by Councilwoman
Benjamin, to approve the expenses related to the Air Conditioning and Heating System, at the Convention
Center and City Hall, in the amount of $13,297.04. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed with a
unanimous vote of the Council.

H. Summer Food Program - Salary Schedule. Mayor Evans stated to Council that they should
have within their packets a copy of the Summer Food Program, Salary Schedule. Mayor Evans further stated
that Ms. Krystal Dozier will be the Administrator, with an estimated salary of $1,805.76 for this Program
which is based upon what was in the Budget last year, at a rate of $15.48/hour. Mayor Evans stated the
Director is Mr. Jerry Smith, who is also a Board of Education Employee, and his total salary will be $3,568.20
at a rate of $14.54/hour for 6 days. Mayor Evans stated a Clerk has not been selected yet, but will be paid
$1474.40, at a rate of $9.00/hour for 4 days, along with 2 Monitors to be paid $1,185.60, at a rate of
$7.50/ hour for 2 days. Mayor Evans stated that there will be 25 Site Supervisors, 1 - 2 hrs/ day, depending on
the Site, roughly being paid at a rate of $8,000.00, at $7.25/hour. Mayor Evans stated he is providing this
information to the Council for information only, for the Summer Food Program, which has already been
funded via the State of Alabama, and does not come out of our General Fund.

L Timeline for Ward 7 Discretionary Account. Mayor Evans stated Councilwoman Crenshaw
had asked for the timeline for Ward 7 Discretionary Account, and he is providing that information to her as
well as to the Council members, and a copy should be within their packets. Councilwoman Crenshaw stated
the information Mayor Evans provided did answer some of her questions, but that her real issue is that, “if
you have $340.00 left, and with the Budget you start with $10,000.00, when you want to get whatever is in the
Budget from me which would have been $340.00, you didn’t get $340.00, instead you pulled out $2,000.00
which was not even there”. Councilwoman Crenshaw stated her question is “why is this”, because she does
remember a Resolution where they had to fix an air conditioning in this building, and she thinks it was
Councilman Bowie who did not have quite enough money to give, and in that Resolution they were asked to
give a $1,000.00 or $2,000.00 each but it never showed up in a resolution stating that he had a deficit because
he only had $60.00 or a $100.00. Councilwoman Crenshaw stated to President Allen that she would like to get
that Resolution pulled because she needs to understand that it is going to be done across the board showing
how monies are disbursed, and that she really thinks it should be done fairly “across the board”. President
Allen stated for clarification that it was not the “President but the vote of this Council to ask for any
amendment changes and not the President”. Ms. Cynthia Mitchell was asked to come forward to address the
Council with an explanation of the “$340.00”. Ms. Mitchell stated on 2-24-09, the Council approved the
reduction of each Council Person’s Discretionary Funds by $2,000.00. President Allen stated to Ms. Mitchell,
that at that particular time she stated to them the Council should realize that there may be individuals who
may have already spent their discretionary money, and Ms. Mitchell concurred with President Allen that she
did make that statement to the Council. President Allen stated the Council still voted to reduce the
discretionary amounts, and stated that whoever had the money that they were still taking the money from




L

i ¥
—d

PAGE 4 OF 9

SELMA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MAY 5, 2009

12:00 NOON

MAYOR’S REPORT

their account, and Ms. Mitchell concurred. Councilwoman Crenshaw stated to Ms. Mitchell that she does
understand that she was following orders, but that if she was asked to take $2,000.00, or whatever the Council
person had, that would have been the difference, as she thinks was done with Councilman Bowie, and that
that would have been the thing to do.

J. Donation of Property - 405 Water Avenue. Mayor Evans stated to Council that they should
have within their packets information on a piece of property that the owners would like to donate to the City
of Selma. Mayor Evans further stated the property owners are Mr. Eugene Bayne and Mr. Lewis Bayne, and
that he and Attorney Nunn, along with Mr. Darryl Moore, went and looked at the property. Mayor Evans
stated to Council he is asking for their approval to accept the property as a gift from the Property Owners;
namely, Mr. Eugene Bayne and Mr. Lewis Bayne, and that Attorney Nunn will proceed with drafting the
legal documents of the Gift of the Property. A motion was made by Councilman Newton, and seconded y
Councilman Randolph, to accept said property of 405 Water Avenue, as a Gift from the Property Owners. A
roll call vote was taken and the motion passed with a unanimous vote of the Council.

K. Oil Lease Money - $250,269.00. Mayor Evans stated to Council that the Oil Lease Money is
in and is available now, in the amount of $250,269.00. Mayor Evans further stated to Council that in the past
the Council has split the amount in 10 ways, and he will make sure that the Council gets a copy forwarded to
their mailboxes. Mayor Evans stated these funds can be used for “permanent” projects, and it is available
now. A motion was made by Councilman Williamson, and seconded by Councilman Randolph, to divide the
Oil Lease Money up by Ten (10). During discussion, Councilwoman Newton made an amended motion,
seconded by Councilwoman Keith, to table this decision, until the Community Development Committee
makes its report next week. A roll call vote was taken to table the decision, and the motion failed for lack
of a majority vote of the Council. There were three affirmative votes and six nay votes. President Allen,
Councilman Williamson, Councilman Randolph, Councilman Tucker, Councilwoman Crenshaw, and

- Councilman Bowie each cast a nay vote. A roll call vote was then taken to divide the Oil Lease Money by

Ten (10), and the motion passed by a majority vote. There were seven affirmative votes and two nay votes.
Councilwoman Newton and Councilwoman Benjamin each cast a nay vote.

L. Selma Water Works & Sewer Board Report from Council Members. Mayor Evans stated if
it meets the President and Council’s approval, he would like to during his report at Council meetings, at least
once a month, provide an update to them and the Citizens on the Water Board meetings, since he serves as
Superintendent of the Water Board, so that they will be informed, along with the three Water Board members
who presently serve as Council Members. Councilman Williamson stated to Mayor Evans, that he had placed
this item on the Agenda, actually for the Council Members who serve, but that if he or whomever could get
an update to the Council at least once a quarter, that would be good.

M. Update - FY 2007-2008 City’s Audit. Mayor Evans stated to Council that he spoke with the
Auditors on last month, and they are scheduled to come back and meet with him, along with Ms. Mitchell
and President Allen, to go over the rough draft hopefully by the last Council meeting in this month. Mayor
Evans further stated he thinks by the first meeting in June we should have a complete copy of the Audit
coming from the Auditing Firm that did our Audit here in Selma.

N. State Examiner’s Audit - Update. Mayor Evans stated to Council that he is still waiting
to hear from the State on this Audit. Mayor Evans further stated he thinks that they are waiting until the
City’s Audit is complete, but he will follow-up on this.

0. Update on Bound Budget - Copy. Mayor Evans stated to Council that the Council will be
getting a bound copy of the Budget, and that Ms. Mitchell is working on it now and will hopefully have
copies to each Council Member by the last meeting in this month.

CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT

A. Map of School Board Districts. Attorney Nunn stated to Council that they should have
within their packets a map of the School Board Districts. Attorney Nunn further stated per the Legislative
Act, it states that District 1 will be composed of Wards 1 and 2, District 2 will be composed of Wards 4 and 5,
District 3 will be composed of Wards 3 and 8, and District 4 will be composed of Wards 6 and 7, and One
Member elected At Large. Attorney Nunn stated this is a Five-Member Elected School Board. Attorney
Nunn further stated per the Legislative Act, it states the Council shall take the necessary steps to ensure that
the Act complies with the Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, its Amendment, and that we did send that to the
Justice Department earlier. Attorney Nunn stated it also states that after the election, and if a majority of the
electors voting pursuant to Section 1 of the Voting Rights Act vote to change to an elected school board, the
Council shall take the necessary steps to make sure that it is in compliance with the Voting Rights Act, and on
(b) it states the election to elect the initial members of the Board of Education shall be held by a Special
Election called by the Selma City Council as soon as practicable after approval of this Act. Attorney Nunn
further stated it is going to be left up to the Council as to whether they want to set this now, or if they prefer
to set the election at a later date. A motion was made by Councilwoman Benjamin to conduct this Special



